
A Community Collaboration
Memorial Park

In Memory of the Past We Build for the Future,
announcement in the Morning Union March 11, 1920

On January 23, 1921, the Morning Union newspaper published an article detailing
the proposed features of the new park which included a bronze memorial naming
fallen soldiers from the district, a playground, trees and gardens, an auto camp, a
public pool, a baseball diamond, and bridges over the creek.

Under the slogan “Give A Shift for the Park”, the community rallied together to
encourage involvement from local individuals and businesses in the form of
fundraising, donating materials, and volunteering labor. The creation of Memorial
Park became a model for other towns and cities; a park built by the community
without using taxpayers’ money. 

Tyrrell approached long-time friend and managing director of the
Empire Gold Mine, George W. Starr, about a seven-acre property

known as the Barker Track between Race Street and Colfax Avenue.
Tyrrell proposed to develop this property into a memorial park and
an auto-camp, which was ultimately passed by Starr to Empire gold

mine president William Bourn and the Empire Mine Board of
Directors who embraced the idea. 

James C. "Jim" Tyrrell

William Bourn Geroge W. Starr

Following the ending of the first World War, many communities
were establishing memorials dedicated to their local fallen

soldiers. Grass Valley Chamber of Commerce secretary, James C.
“Jim” Tyrrell, wanted the same for Grass Valley and started

working to set the project in motion.

Community Members volunteering labor towards the creation of the park in 1921
Courtesy Grass Valley Union Newspaper



Armistice Day

Honoring Those Who Served
Memorial Park

The Memorial Scroll created by Edward Uren dedicated to the 457 service
members from the Grass Valley District who had served in the war. 

The gold stars indicate members of the Grass Valley District that died.



Lieutenant George Work addressing the crowd on November
11, 1921. The Memorial Scroll can be seen in front of him,

facing the crowd.
Courtesy Searls Historical Society

On November 11, 1921, bells tolled throughout the City as
Grass Valley residents gathered by the thousands to

attend the opening ceremony of Memorial Park, presided
by Jim Tyrrell. Following the raising of the flag by the
American Legion, the crowd moved to the community

building where Tyrrell and Mayor W. H. Southcott
accepted the park on behalf of the residents of Grass

Valley. That evening, a color guard of veterans and the
town band marched into the park to lower the flag,

concluding the formalities.

After attending Armstrong Business College, in 1918, 26-
year-old Saurin King enlisted in the U.S. Navy where he

contracted influenza and succumbed to pneumonia. 
In his memory, his former instructor Elizabeth Armstrong

and the Women’s Improvement Club sponsored the
Saurin King Fund. After nine years tireless fund-raising,

they constructed an eleven foot tall clock tower
composed of quartz rock, river pebbles and petrified

wood in Saurin's honor.

A 107-millimeter Russian-manufactured siege gun was
delivered to the City in 1926 via the narrow-gauge

railroad and is currently displayed above the parks
outdoor memorial. 

Today, Memorial Park
includes monuments

to World War II, Korea,
Vietnam, the Gulf Wars

and other military
actions. For over a

century, the  park has
hosted annual

Memorial Day and
Veterans Day
ceremonies.

Morning Union article dated 
May 31,1992



Following the trend of “Car Camping” made popular by
President Harding, towns across America started to

create auto camps. These camps were usually equipped
with shelters houses, washrooms, and fuel stations, and
opened the door for small rural areas to accommodate

travelers, boosting tourism. After seeing the success of
the auto camp in nearby Nevada City, Chamber of

Commerce secretary James “Jim” Tyrrell knew that one
needed to be included in Memorial Park. 



In addition to the 8 houses, a smaller building with

toilets, washbasins, showers and dressing rooms was
built exclusively for the auto camp visitors. Anita B.

Fulton, wife of a mine manager, designed the communal
facilities at the auto camp and the Farm Bureau

contributed materials and expertise.

The Best in the West
Memorial Park

Morning Union 
August 25, 1922

As a gift from the mine, the Idaho Maryland Mines
Company staff built a community building for the park.

This building was designed for the publics use, providing
a large central room, bathrooms as well as additional

storage rooms for City use. 

All photos courtesy Searls Historical Society 

Per the Morning Union, the Community House was used
for a multitude of events such as club meetings, school
events, concerts and private parties. Donated lunches
and dinners were frequently served to the public out of

the main hall. 

Per the Morning Union, the Community House was used
for a multitude of events such as club meetings, school

events, concerts and private partie



Grass Valley's Greatest Asset
Memorial Park

The pool was donated by Elizabeth “Libby” Starr, wife of Empire mine managing director,
George Starr and the pool house was given to the city by the mine. George Starr directed the

construction of both the 130’x40’ pool and house and selected his crew, including locals John
Collins and his son Clarence. The father and son duo helped build the forms and pour the

concrete for the original swimming pool and they built the pool house. By late September 1921,
the pool and structures were complete.

Bennet “Ben” Penhall designed and supervised the
construction of a stone bridge over the creek which

was filled with 10,000 trout by the California Fish
and Game Department and ran through the

property. Mmebers of the community and the
Nevada County Farm Bureau donated their time

and material towards landscaping the Park

Edmund Kinyon, the editor of the Morning Union,  stated that children played from morning to night and that Memorial Park
was Grass Valley's greatest asset.


